
               

 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

September 3, 2013 - 7:30 p.m. 
 

City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is reviewed 
and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating lengthy discussions to gain basic understanding.            
Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or analysis.                    
An informational packet is available for public inspection on our website at www.cityofevans.org and posted 
immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE 
 

3. ROLL CALL   Mayor:  Lyle Achziger 
 Mayor Pro-Tem:  John Morris 
 Council:  Laura Brown 
    Mark Clark 

 April Neibauer 
 Brian Rudy 
 Jay Schaffer 

 
4. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  

 
The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to 
address the City Council, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so.  When you are 
recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address City Council.  
Your comments will be limited to two (2) minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your 
comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement 
and your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up.  Thank you! 

 
5. RECOGNITION 

A. Safety Event Presentation 
B. August Yard of the Month — Esequiel Garcia, 3720 Riverside Parkway 

 
6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 20, 2013 
 

8. Old Business 
A. Continuation Public Hearing—Resolution No. 29-2013 for USR Bell 

Supply 

If you would like to address City Council,  
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 
 

http://www.cityofevans.org/


9. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Request for Full-Time Position Increase 
 

10. REPORTS 
A. City Manager 
B. City Attorney 

 
11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 
 
Please review the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for procedures 
on addressing City Council. 

 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS – MISSION STATEMENT 
 “To deliver sustainable, citizen-driven services for the health, safety, and welfare 

of the community.” 



 
  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:  September 3, 2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 7.A 

   
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes  
 
PRESENTED BY:  Raegan Robb, City Clerk  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Approval of the minutes of the Regular City Council meeting of August 20, 2013. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move to approve the consent agenda and the minutes as presented." 
  
 



 

MINUTES 
 EVANS CITY COUNCIL 
 Regular Meeting 
 August 20, 2013 - 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Achziger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:  Mayor Achziger, Mayor Pro-Tem Morris, Council Members Brown, Neibauer, Rudy, and 

Schaffer. 
 
Absent:  Council Member Clark 
 

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  

 
The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to address the 
City Council, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so.  When you are recognized, please step to the 
podium, state your name and address then address City Council.   Your comments will be limited to two (2) 
minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your comments this evening, rather they may take your 
comments and suggestions under advisement and your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff 
person for follow-up.  Thank you! 
 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Council Member Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy to approve 
the agenda.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 5, 2013 
B. Resolution No. 28-2013—Designation of Public Place for Postings in the  
 City of Evans 
C. Resolution No. 29-2013—Joint Use Agreement with District 6 
 

Mayor Rudy made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown to adopt the consent 
agenda.   
 
Council Member Schaffer explained that he was absent from the regular meeting on August 
5, 2013 and recused himself from voting on the minutes of the August 5th meeting.   
 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 



 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Public Hearing—Resolution No. 29-2013 for USR Bell Supply 
 

Zach Ratkai, City Building and Development Director, explained that the applicant has 
requested to postpone the public hearing until the next City Council meeting on September 
3rd.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, to continue 
the public hearing until September 3, 2013.  The motion passed with all voting in favor 
thereof. 
   

B. Resolution No. 30-2013 - Supporting The Grant Application For A Local Parks And 
Outdoor Recreation Planning Grant From The State Board Of The Great Outdoors 
Colorado For The South Platte River Corridor Master Plan 

 
Sheryl Trent, Community and Economic Development Director, explained that the 
Resolution allowed the City to request $75,000 from Great Outdoors Colorado (GOCO) to 
create a Master Plan for the South Platte River in Evans.  She explained that the City Council 
has already appropriated $40,000 for the Master Plan project and that no additional financing 
would be needed by the City.  She also stated that any contracts related to the project would 
be approved by City Council. 
 
The Mayor discussed his support for the Master Plan for the South Platte River and asked 
about the timeline of completing the project.   
 
Ms. Trent explained the timelines of the grant request and completing the project if the City 
receives funding from GOCO. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris made the motion to approve Resolution 30-2013 concerning a 
matching grant for the South Platte River Corridor Trail Project in the amount of $75,000. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
 

C. Public Hearing—New Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for Roma Restaurant 
 

The Mayor opened the public hearing at 7:41 p.m. and requested to hear from staff. 
 
Raegan Robb, Evans City Clerk, presented the application for a new Hotel/Restaurant liquor 
license for TAA Inc., doing business as Roma Restaurant, located at 3625 23rd Avenue, 
Evans. 

 
Mr. Robb explained that City Council would be acting as the Local Licensing Authority to 
deny or approve the request for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License. He also stated that this 
license was submitted for concurrent review with the City and the State, and explained that 
the City would not issue the liquor license until the premises are properly inspected and the 



 

applicants receive a Certificate of Occupancy and City Business License. Mr. Robb 
summarized the preliminary findings from the report submitted to the applicant for the 
Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License, which covered the local and state requirements that were 
satisfied prior to the hearing.  He concluded his presentation by requesting that City Council 
approved the application for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License.      

 
The applicant, Chris Allison, 4916 3rd Street Road, Greeley, addressed City Council to 
request their support for the liquor license.  

  
Mayor Achziger asked Mr. Allison about his timeline for completion and the businesses 
surrounding the location. 
 
Mr. Allison, explained that he hopes to be open by mid-September and explained what other 
businesses would surround the location. 
 
The Mayor discussed his support for the business to receive a liquor license. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris asked Mr. Allison about his “TIPS” alcohol training and certifying 
his employees. 
 
Mr. Allison explained that he has taken TIPS courses and tries to have his employees 
certified.  
 
The Mayor closed the public hearing at 7:49 p.m. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris discussed his support for the business. 
 
The other Council Members discussed their support for the business to receive a liquor 
license. 
 
Council Member Neibauer, made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, for the 
conditional approval of the Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for TAA Inc., doing business as 
Roma Restaurant. The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
 
D. Public Hearing—New Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill 

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 7:52. 

 
Mr. Robb, presented the application for a new Hotel/Restaurant liquor license for Lit’l Bit 
Bar & Grill LLC, doing business as Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill, located at 3620 35th Avenue, Evans. 

 
Mr. Robb explained that City Council would be acting as the Local Licensing Authority to 
deny or approve the request for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License. He also stated that this 
license was submitted for concurrent review with the City and the State, and explained that 



the City would not issue the liquor license until the premises are properly inspected and the 
applicants receive a Certificate of Occupancy and City Business License. Mr. Robb 
summarized the preliminary findings from the report submitted to the applicant for the 
Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License, which covered the local and state requirements that were 
satisfied prior to the hearing.  He concluded his presentation by requesting that City Council 
approved the application for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License.      

 
Mayor Achziger asked the applicants if they wanted to speak on the liquor license 
application.  The applicants, Debra Nelson, 555 E. 19th Street, Greeley, Barbara Solivais, 319 
Ash Court, Evans, addressed City Council to discuss the plans for their business and the 
request for   
 
Deb and Barb discussed their experience in the restaurant business, talked about their 
previous careers, and talked about the transition into the new restaurant space.   
 
Mayor Achziger discussed his support for the business to receive a liquor license. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris asked staff to if the business had received a building permit. 
 
Mr. Robb clarified that the business had received a building permit and explained that the 
business was close to receiving its Certificate of Occupancy. 
 
Council Member Schaffer discussed his association with Barb Solivais, which was 
determined not to be a conflict of interest. He voiced his support for the business and for the 
request for a liquor license. 
 
At 8:03 p.m. Mayor Achziger closed the public hearing. 
 
The Council Members discussed their support for the application. 
 
Mayor Achziger asked the applicants about their timeline to open their business. 
 
The applicants explained that they were planning on opening by September 14th.   
 
Council Member Rudy made the motion, Seconded by Council Member Schaffer, to approve 
the conditional approval of the Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill, 
LLC, doing business as Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill. The motion passed with all voting in favor 
thereof. 

 
 
REPORTS 

A. City Manager 
 
Aden Hogan, City Manager, distributed the City Manager’s Monitoring Report and discussed 
the upcoming District 2 meeting hosted by the Colorado Municipal League in Estes Park, on 



 

October 3rd.  He also talked about the changing seasons and provided an update concerning 
the City’s change to a “.gov” web domain. He also discussed the City Safety Event 
conducted on August 10th and thanked all of the staff involved in helping with the event. 
 
Mayor Achziger also thanked staff for their help with the City Safety Event, specifically 
Officer Michael Yates. 
 
B. City Attorney 
 
Scott Krob, discussed his review of the closing documents for the Riverside Library and 
Cultural Center.  He also provided an update about his meetings with staff to educate him 
about the City’s issues related to equivalent residential units (EQRs). Mr. Krob also 
discussed his work with City staff on an IGA between Evans Police Department and Weld 
County related to the use of SOTAR for tracking sex offenders in the City. He also 
mentioned an update he received from the Development Review Team. 

 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 

There was no audience participation  
 
 

  EXECUTIVE SESSION  
A. For the purpose of discussing matters that may be subject to negotiations C.R.S. 24-

6-402(4)(e).   
 

At 8:17 p.m. Council Member Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem, to go 
into Executive Session. The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
  The Executive Session concluded at 9:01 p.m. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
  The regular meeting adjourned at 9:02 p.m. 



1 
 

 
 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: September 3, 2013  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  8.A 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Resolution No 30-2013 - Use by Special Review 

for Outdoor Storage on property zoned I-2 – 4101 Carson Avenue 
in Evans Colorado – (Bell Oil Supply) 

 
PRESENTED BY: N. Zach Ratkai, Building and Development Manager 
 
  
 

 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  This is a request from the landowner (Borchert Pointe, LLC), for a 
Use by Special Review (USR) for outdoor storage to exceed the allowed 20% in the City of 
Evans Municipal Code.  The owner originally requested to be approved to utilize up to 68% of 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Location: 4101 Carson Avenue  

 
Applicants: Todd Bloom, Tebo Development  

(representing Borchert Pointe, LLC, landowner) 
 Existing Land Use: Vacant 
  

Proposed Land Use: Office/Warehouse with Storage Yard  

 
Surrounding Land 
Use: 

North Industrial (McJunkin Redman)  

South Commercial (Vacant) 

East Commercial (Vacant)  

West Industrial (Non-conforming storage yard) 

Existing Zoning: Medium Industrial (I-2) 

Proposed Zoning: Same 
 
Surrounding 
Zoning: 

North  I-3  

South C-3 

East   C-3 

West   I-3 
Future Land Use 
Designation: 

 
Industrial Business Park 

 



2 
 

the site for outdoor storage, since the Planning Commission hearing on August 5th, the request 
has been changed to utilize up to 60% as outdoor storage.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend approval with conditions in order to meet the criteria for 
the approval of the special use.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 5, 
2013 and recommended approval with conditions.  The condition to allow the outdoor storage 
standard to be exceeded for a five (5) year period with an automatic expiration at the end of 
the five (5) years. Staff is recommending some screening and landscaping as conditions of 
approval as well.
 
ANALYSIS: 
 

1. Background: In the spring of 2013, Borchert Pointe, LLC (land owners) approached the 
city with the plan to construct an office/warehouse building to serve as the Evans base 
for Bell Supply. As part of this plan, a site plan was submitted and is currently under 
administrative review by staff. The zoning for the site limits allowed outdoor storage to 
20% of the total site area. The site plan, and intentions for the property, show a storage 
yard.  The applicant is requesting a Use by Special Review approval to allow outdoor 
storage in excess of that allowed in an I-2 zone – 20% is the allowed amount of outdoor 
storage, the request is for 68%. 
 

2. Section 19.04, 19.32 19.44 and 19.48 of the Evans Municipal Code: 
Section 19.48 of the Municipal Code addresses accessory uses and in particular outdoor 
storage.  The proposed outdoor storage is over 20% of the property and therefore 
requires a USR approval in accordance with Section 19.44.   

 
19.48.055 Outdoor storage. 
Except by approval of a Use by Special Review, granted in accordance with Chapter 19.44 of 
the Municipal Code, outdoor storage shall only be allowed as an accessory use in the I – 
Industrial – zoning districts and only in accordance with the following limitations: 

A. No more than 10 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-1 – Light Industrial – 
zoning district may be used for outdoor storage. 
B. No more than 20 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-2 – Medium 
Industrial – zoning district may be used for outdoor storage. 
C. No more than 30 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-3 – Heavy Industrial 
– zoning district may be used for outdoor storage.  
(Ord. 350-05: Ord. 272-04) 
 

Below are the criteria for approval of a USR per Section 19.44.020. 
 
Chapter 19.44 
Approval of Special Uses 
 
19.44.020 Criteria for Use by Special Review.   
 

A. All special uses are listed within each zoning district. If a use is proposed that is not 
defined within the Evans Municipal Code and does not reasonably fall within the 



3 
 

definition of any defined use in the Municipal Code, the property owner may apply for 
use by special review approval in accordance with this chapter. 
B. Criteria. The following criteria shall be used to evaluate use by special review 
requests: 
 

1. The proposed use is found to be unlikely to harm the health, safety, or 
welfare of the City or its residents. 
 
The use could certainly harm the welfare of the City and our residents by eliminating the 
compatibility with the commercially zoned properties to the south.  With heavy industrial 
use (60% outdoor storage) commercial uses to the south would be limited, which 
affects the long term financial sustainability of the City. 

 
2. The proposed use would benefit the City in terms of employment, tax 

revenue, or other similar effects, as compared to the absence of the proposed 
use. 
 
This type of storage allotment is associated typically with heavy industrial use and is 
best located in areas of I-3 zoning that are well removed from the public right of way 
and away from commercial uses.  Even in the I-3 zone the code states 30% is the 
maximum for outdoor storage.  In urban areas such as the City of Evans, uses such as 
outdoor storage should be limited (as the code intended) in order to fulfill the goals of 
the 2010 Comprehensive Plan and long range planning and sustainability issues. 
 

3. The proposed use shall be consistent w ith the Evans Comprehensive Plan and 
shall be compatible w ith the surrounding area. 

 
The use is NOT consistent with the Evans Comprehensive Plan nor is it compatible with 
the surrounding area.  Much of the surrounding area is developed as industrial, with 
similar office/warehouse/storage use. The proposal from the applicant is a request to 
meet a similar standard to existing conditions in the area; however many of these sites 
are out of compliance.  The City is in the process of issuing notices of violation to the 
remaining land owners in violation of the outdoor storage code. 

 
4. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use 

shall be compatible w ith the ex isting and proposed future land uses w ithin 
the general area in which the proposed use is to be located and w ill not 
create significant noise, traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be 
objectionable or detrimental to other permitted uses in the vicinity. 
Reasonable conditions may be placed on uses by special review  to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare by mitigating impacts. 
 
The current and future land uses in that site are not compatible with outdoor storage of 
this intensity on this size of property.  It will create a situation/condition that will 
negatively affect other property owners in the area, especially the commercial properties 
to the south.  Additional screening throughout the perimeter and the requirement for a 
landscape bufferyard and a different kind of fencing will be required to mitigate impacts.   

 



4 
 

5. The site shall be physically suitable for the type and intensity of the proposed 
land use. 
 
The site is physically suitable for outdoor storage, except for the zoning, the 
compatibility with surrounding uses to the south (commercially zoned) and proximity to 
the public right of way. 

 
6. The proposed land use shall not adversely affect traffic flow  and parking in 

the neighborhood. 
 

The outdoor storage use proposed would not adversely affect traffic flow and parking in 
the area.  

 
7. The location of other approved uses by special review  in the neighborhood 

shall be determined, in order to avoid an over-concentration of such uses. 
 
The applicant has pointed out that in the area; there are storage yards in which outdoor 
covers a substantial area of the property. However, the sites referenced are out of 
compliance with the Municipal Code. Staff is currently issuing letters of violation in the 
area to other land owners that may not be aware of the code related to outdoor 
storage.   
In consideration of surrounding uses, currently the approval on 1470 42nd Street is for 
up to 50%, and that was allowed as it could be screened from 42nd Street and was a 
much smaller piece of land, and hence a much smaller impact on the neighborhood.  
Most recently, 1461 43rd Street to the south of this property was approved to have 60% 
outdoor storage, with conditions placed on the property for the addition of substantial 
screening as well as a temporary, revocable time period during which excess storage 
would be allowed. Those approvals, which will stay for that legal description on that site, 
will remain in place and anything other would be an over concentration of the outdoor 
storage use in the area. 

 
Issues: 
 
The main concern with the application is the adjacency and compatibility with commercial and 
other industrial zoning.  42nd Street is a major thoroughfare for the City of Evans and therefore 
compatibility with existing industrial uses and future commercial uses is critical to the future 
development and sustainability of the City. With 60% of the lot being used for outdoor storage 
that issue becomes even more important to the long term compatibility issues in the 
neighborhood.   
 
The precedent set by allowing a Use by Special Review for additional outdoor storage in this I-2 
zone at this location could lead to other land owners requesting the same USR for the same 
reasons (business oriented).  That would essentially mean the land in this area would exceed 
even the highest use allowed in the I-3 zone (currently 30%). 
 
The land sits higher than the adjacent commercial lots along 42nd Street and no amount of 
screening allowed under the code would allow compatibility to exist with other uses in the area.  
There is no fence or landscaping allowed by the code that could be installed on site to improve 



5 
 

the compatibility for 42nd Street, the commercial properties to the north, and the Highway 85 
corridor to the east. 
 
Additionally, this land is zoned I-2 for a reason. The premise behind appropriate zoning includes 
the issues of land use.  Zoning permits certain uses on land and usually  move from the least 
intense uses to the most intense uses, protecting land and the public from more intense uses 
by placing that zoning away from areas of commercial, residential, or lower uses land zoning.  
The land uses should move from least significant impact to higher impact, especially along 
major arterials and areas of importance to the City. 
 
Other land in the area is zoned either I-1 or C-3 (lowest industrial zoning in our code, highest 
commercial zoning in our code, which would be compatible uses).  This land is visually adjacent 
to Highway 85, and also adjacent to other I-1 and C-3 sites that comply with the code. 
 
Notice of this public hearing was provided in accordance with Chapter 19.64 and 18.28.125 of 
the Municipal Code. 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS 
After reviewing the Bell Supply USR for outdoor storage that exceeds the 20% and a security 
residence on property located at 4101 Carson Avenue, the following findings of fact and 
conclusions have been determined: 
 

The review criteria in Sections 19.44 of the Evans Municipal Code CAN be appropriately and 
sufficiently met WITH CONDITIONS.  With conditions, approval of this special use would be 
consistent with the 2010 Comprehensive Plan and with the surrounding land uses. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
I recommend that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval with 
conditions of the requested USR with the findings and conclusions listed above as well as the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The approval for excess storage is for a period of five (5) years and will expire on 
August 20, 2018, this approval period is renewable at time of expiration. Said renewal is 
not automatic and must be initiated by the property owner at the time of expiration or if 
the nature of the land use warrants review of the USR conditions approved herein, and;  

2. The approval is contingent upon a landscape buffer of fifteen (15) feet surrounding both 
the northern and southern sides of the subject property, and a twenty (20) foot 
landscape buffer on the rear of the property (review to be secured through the site plan 
process).  

3. The approval is contingent upon in installation of a fully opaque, six (6) foot tall cedar 
privacy fence to screen the storage yard as shown on the preliminary site plan.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
“I move to approve Resolution 30-2013 supporting the approval with conditions of the Bell 
Supply USR because it meets the criteria outlined in Sections 19.04, 19.32, 19.44 and Section 
19.48 of the Municipal Code.” 



6 
 

 “I move to deny Resolution 30-2013 supporting the approval with conditions of the Bell Supply 
USR because it meets the criteria outlined in Sections 19.04, 19.32, 19.44 and Section 19.48 of 
the Municipal Code.” 
 
 









Chapter 19.44 1 Title 19  

Chapter 19.44 
 

APPROVAL OF SPECIAL USES 
 
Sections: 
 

19.44.010 Intent. 
19.44.020 Criteria for Use by Special Review. 
19.44.030 Procedure for Special Use Permit. 
19.44.040 Business and Industrial Uses – Oil and Gas Well Locations – City Council 

Permission Prerequisite to Building Permit Issuance. 
19.44.050 Expiration Date. 
19.44.060 Fees. 
 
19.44.010 Intent.  The intent of this chapter is to require a public hearing for special land uses in 

order to determine if the use has the potential to adversely affect other land uses, transportation systems, 
public facilities, or the like, in the surrounding neighborhood thereby ensuring that uses by special 
review will not harm the health, safety, and welfare of the City and its residents. The City Council may 
disapprove any such request, or may impose such conditions and safeguards as may be required to 
maintain the intent of this zoning code. (Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00: Ord. 1027-96) 
 

19.44.020 Criteria for Use by Special Review.   
A. All special uses are listed within each zoning district. If a use is proposed that is not defined 

within the Evans Municipal Code and does not reasonably fall within the definition of any defined use in 
the Municipal Code, the property owner may apply for use by special review approval in accordance 
with this chapter. 

B. Criteria. The following criteria shall be used to evaluate use by special review requests: 
1. The proposed use is found to be unlikely to harm the health, safety, or welfare of the City 

or its residents. 
2. The proposed use would benefit the City in terms of employment, tax revenue, or other 

similar effects, as compared to the absence of the proposed use. 
3. The proposed use shall be consistent with the Evans Comprehensive Plan and shall be 

compatible with the surrounding area. 
4. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use shall be 

compatible with the existing and proposed future land uses within the general area in 
which the proposed use is to be located and will not create significant noise, traffic, or 
other conditions or situations that may be objectionable or detrimental to other permitted 
uses in the vicinity. Reasonable conditions may be placed on uses by special review to 
protect the public health, safety, and welfare by mitigating impacts. 

5. The site shall be physically suitable for the type and intensity of the proposed land use. 
6. The proposed land use shall not adversely affect traffic flow and parking in the 

neighborhood. 
7. The location of other approved uses by special review in the neighborhood shall be 

determined, in order to avoid an over-concentration of such uses. 
8. Mini-storage units shall also comply with the following standards: 

a. Setbacks of buildings from all streets shall be a minimum of 25 feet. 
b. A 10-foot-wide buffer area of natural growth, including trees and shrubs approved by 

the City, shall be installed and maintained along the entire length of any boundary of 
the development that is adjacent to a residentially zoned district, whether or not such 
boundary is separated by a street, alley, or easement or other right-of-way. Such buffer 



Chapter 19.44 2 Title 19  

may, if required by the City, include a six-foot-high screen composed of natural or 
manmade materials. 

c. Landscaping plans must be presented with the application and must be approved by 
City Council at the Use by Special Review hearing. Such plans must show the 
proposed types and locations of all natural plantings, ground coverings, and screening, 
including the size and number of trees. 

d. Architectural design plans and elevations must be presented with the application and 
must be approved by City Council at the Use by Special Review hearing. 
Architectural plans and elevations must indicate the size and locations of all 
structures including the proposed exterior design and wall and roof coverings of the 
buildings. Architectural plans will be examined to ensure that the proposed 
development’s features such as height, length, facade, color, etc., are compatible with 
the surrounding area. 

e. No changes shall be made to an approved plan which would alter the character of the 
building(s) or use of the property without prior approval of the City Council. 

f. Special Permit. Special Permits for exceptions to the mini-storage requirements may 
be granted provided all of the following criteria are met: 
i. Such use is found to be compatible with the surrounding area; 

ii. Such use shall not adversely affect the surrounding area; 
iii. Such use shall not adversely affect the future development of the area; 
iv. Due to the proposed geographical location of such use or other physical situation 

of the land or building, practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship which has not 
been self imposed would deprive the owner/tenant of the property of the 
reasonable use of the site or portion of the site in question; and 

v. The purpose and intent of this code is maintained. 
g. Miscellaneous conditions within the "C" and "RC" zone districts: 

i. Within the mini-storage facility premises, uses such as distribution centers, 
assembly or manufacturing, retail sales, or any use other than storage is 
prohibited, with the exception of the sale or rental of accessory items typically 
used for moving, including, but not limited to, boxes, hand-trucks, and moving 
vans. 

ii. Fully screened, outdoor storage for recreational vehicles, boats, vacant trailers 
(excluding mobile homes), and similar items that are well maintained and in good 
condition may be approved as part of the mini-storage unit facility. Plans for such 
screening must have the approval of the City. The maximum area of such outdoor 
storage use shall not exceed 25 percent of the total site.  

9. Car wash facilities.  The Planning Commission and the City Council shall consider the 
following aspects of the proposed facility when reviewing a petition for a Use by Special 
Review for a car wash facility: 
a. Character of the area of the site, including proximity of residential property to the site 

and proximity of existing car wash facilities; 
b. Hours of operation; 
c. Presence or absence of a system for reclaiming and reusing water; 
d. Building height, including whether the facility would have the capability to service 

commercial vehicles and/or recreational vehicles (RVs); 
e. Site design, including orientation and distance of the wash bays to the nearest street; 
f. Any other factor(s) which could serve to mitigate or aggravate the undesirable aspects 

of car wash facilities.  
 
 



Chapter 19.44 3 Title 19  

10. Oil and gas facilities. Oil and gas facilities shall only be installed, erected, and/or 
constructed in accordance with Chapter 16.28, Oil and Gas Exploration and 
Development. Landscaping plans must be presented with the application and must be 
approved by City Council at the Use by Special Review hearing. Such plans must show 
the proposed types and locations of all natural plantings, ground coverings, and screening, 
including the size and number of trees. 
 (Ord. 446-08: Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 253-04: Ord. 015-00) 
 

19.44.030 Procedure for Special Use Permits. The following procedure shall be followed by the 
applicant for a special use permit: 

A. Petition.  A petition in the form prescribed by the City shall be filed with the City Clerk and 
shall be accompanied by a letter explaining why the use should be permitted. The petition shall be signed 
by the owner of the property. 

B. Review – Planning Department.  The petition shall be reviewed by the Director of Public 
Works/Planning and the applicant shall be notified promptly of any deficiencies. 

C. Administrative Report.  Staff will prepare comments for use by the Planning Commission, 
addressing all aspects concerning the special permit, its conformance with the Evans Comprehensive 
Plan, sound land use planning practices, the standards contained in this chapter, and other such matters 
as the planning staff considers material to determination of the application. 

D. Planning Commission Review.  The Planning Commission shall give such weight as it deems 
appropriate to the testimony and comments offered by the public. The Planning Commission shall hold a 
public hearing and make a recommendation to City Council on the application.  

E. City Council Review.  After the Planning Commission makes a recommendation on the 
application, the City Council shall hold a public hearing and consider the application at a regular or 
special meeting within 30 days. The City Council shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove 
the special use request. Approval of the request shall be made by resolution, which shall be recorded at 
the office of the Weld County Clerk and Recorder. Approval and any conditions of approval shall “run 
with the land,” and shall apply to subsequent owners of the property, and shall not be transferable to any 
other property. 

F. Notice.  The public hearings before the Planning Commission and the City Council required 
by this chapter shall be held only after public notice has been given in accordance with Chapter 19.64 of 
the Evans Municipal Code.   

G. Revocation of Special Permits.  If, at any time, the owner or tenant of a property that has 
received a special use permit fails to comply with any condition of approval, or the application or 
testimony of an applicant is found to have been false or misleading, or the use differs from that which 
was approved, or the use causes legitimate complaints from others in the area of the use, the City 
Council may review the special use approval and may revoke such approval by resolution. (Ord. 349-05: 
Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00) 
 

19.44.040 Business and Industrial Uses – Oil and Gas Well Locations – City Council Permission 
Prerequisite to Building Permit Issuance. 

A. Notwithstanding any other provision in this zoning code, the City Council shall have the 
power to direct the location and regulate the use and construction of breweries, distilleries, livery stables, 
blacksmith shops, and foundries within the City limits. 

B. Notwithstanding any other provision in this zoning code, the City Council shall have the 
power to direct the location and regulate the use and construction of slaughterhouses and byproducts 
plants, packing houses, renderies, tallow candleries, bone factories, soap factories, tanneries, dehydrating 
plants, and dairies within the City limits. 
 
 



Chapter 19.44 4 Title 19  

C. Notwithstanding any other provisions in this zoning code, the City Council shall have the 
power to prohibit any offensive or unwholesome business or establishment, and also to prohibit the 
carrying on of any business or establishment in any offensive and unwholesome manner, within the City 
limits. 

D. Any business or establishment which can be or is classified as falling within those designated 
in subsections A through C of this section shall first obtain specific permission from the City Council 
through the special use process before a building permit may be issued. 

E. No building permit shall be issued for any building not in compliance with setbacks from any 
oil or gas well or ancillary equipment, as established in Chapters 15.48 and 16.28, as amended.  

F. No building permit shall be issued for any building not in compliance with setbacks from any 
abandoned oil or gas wells as established in Chapters 15.48 and 16.28, as amended, until and unless the 
applicant, by clear and convincing evidence, can demonstrate to the City Council that the well has been 
abandoned and plugged in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations and that the 
issuance of such permit will not endanger any person or property. The Council may require such 
independent tests and reports as it deems necessary prior to final consideration of such permit. If a 
permit is approved, the Council may impose such conditions as it deems necessary or advisable for the 
protection of persons and property. (Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00) 
 

19.44.050 Expiration.  
A. Unless otherwise stated in the approving resolution, all special permits not exercised within 

six months from the date of the resolution shall become null and void.  
B. Approval of any special use that is discontinued for three or more consecutive months shall 

become null and void and such use shall not be allowed to recommence without again obtaining special 
use approval, unless otherwise stated in the approving resolution. (Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00) 
 

19.44.060 Fees. Each application for a special use permit shall be accompanied at the time of 
filing by a fee as established by City Council by resolution. The applicant shall also pay the cost of 
publication and notification of the public hearings in accordance with Chapter 19.64 of the Municipal 
Code. (Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00) 
 
  



LOT  5B

LOT  28

LOT  27

LOT  26

LOT  25

3939
LOT  6

3817
LOT  7

3807

LOT  10

LOT  9

LOT  1

3711  (1 -6)

LOT  35

LOT  30

3812

3808
LOT  B

3800
LOT  A

3714
LOT  6

LOT  4

LOT  1

LOT  3C

LOT  3A

3710

3711

1400

LOT  33

LOT  34

LOT  32

LOT S 8-17

LOT  2

3901

3903

3717

3734

3736  (1 -4)

3730

3724

3718 /3 720
3711

3719

3721  (1 -4)

3723

3731

3817

3811

1502

3913

3995

3806

3810

3814

3818

3822

3826

3830

3834

1508

1507

3742

3738

3734

3730

37223721

3723

3727

3733

3739

1515

3805

3811

3815

3831

3827

3823

1501

1470
1600

LOT S 15-1 7LOT  13

LOT  3

LOT  19

LOT  18

LOT  17

LOT  16

LOT  15

LOT  14

LOT  13

LOT  18LOT  17LOT  16LOT S 14 &  15

LOT  12

LOT  11

LOT S 8-10

LOT  5 LOT  2LOT  3

LOT  1

LOT S 8-11

LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT S 1-4

LOT S 1-2

LOT  4

LOT S 2 &  3

LOT  1

LOT  7

LOT  6LOT  5

LOT  10 LOT  9

LOT  8

LOT  7

LOT  6LOT  5

LOT  55 LOT  54 LOT  53 LOT  52 LOT  51 LOT  50 LOT  49 LOT  48

LOT  47

LOT  46

LOT  45

LOT  44LOT  43LOT  42LOT  41

LOT  30 LOT  29 LOT  28
LOT  27

LOT  26

LOT  25

LOT  24

LOT  23

LOT  21

LOT  22

LOT  20

LOT  11 LOT  10

LOT  9

LOT  8

LOT  7LOT  6

LOT  17 LOT  16 LOT  15 LOT  14 LOT  13 LOT  12

LOT  11LOT  10LOT  9LOT  8LOT  7LOT  6

LOT  17 LOT  16 LOT  15 LOT  14 LOT  13 LOT  12

LOT  11LOT  10LOT  9LOT  8LOT  7LOT  6

1605

1610 1602

1528

1524

1520
1521

1525

1529

1533

1537

LOT  18

LOT  17

LOT  16

LOT  15

LOT  14

LOT  11
LOT  10

LOT  9

LOT  8

LOT  7LOT  6

LOT  5C

151815201522160016021604

151915211523160116031605

151815201522160016021604

151915211523160116031605

15161518152015221600160216041606

1605 1603 1601 1523

3905

1600
16021604

3909

3913

3917

3921

3925

1605

1610 1606

4001

4005

16071611

1608 1604

4103

4107

16051609

1607 1603

4111

1606

LOT  9 LOT  8

LOT  31LOT  29

3951
LOT  5A

3710  (1 -4)

LOT S 1,  2  &  18 -24

LOT  2A

LOT  1 LOT  2

3705

3721

3723

3725

3815

4101

4303

4235

4405

3723

3725

3729

922

4009

4013

4019

4025

4113

4105

4129

3819

3819  IDAH O ST

4009

4015

4004

4008

4012

4014

919

4123

4103
4102

4106

4108

4114

4116

4201

4203

4205

4207

4209

4211

4215

4213

LOT  8

LOT  7

LOT  6

LOT  5

LOT  4

LOT  3

LOT  2

LOT  1

1112

LOT  1A

LOT  1

LOT  2B

1112
LOT  2

LOT  3

LOT  1
1100

4200  (1 -4)

3946 /3 948 /3 950

3901

1221
1229 /1 225

4245

4265

4301

4320

4415 /4 417 /4 419

4240

4244

LOT S 19-2 2

1005 /1 007 /1 009 /1 011
1013 /1 015 /1 017

1425

1 2

3 4

5

6

1280 /1 320 /1 330 /1 340

4333

4311

LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT  1LOT  2

LOT  3 LOT  4

LOT  4LOT  3LOT  2

LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT  1

LOT  2LOT  1

3810 /3 812
LOT  2

LOT  1
3800 /3 802 /3 804 /3 806

3801

3807

3809

3901  ST AT E ST

3919  ST AT E ST

LOT  1A
9221004

4301  D ENVER ST

LOT S 9-11

LOT  1

LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT S 1-2

LOT  8

LOT  10

LOT S 12-1 8LOT S 19-2 5

LOT S 35-3 6

LOT S 33-3 4

LOT S 31-3 2

LOT S 1-6

924926
930

LOT  20

LOT  6

LOT S 16-1 7

LOT S 12-1 5

LOT S 7-11

LOT S 28-2 9

LOT S 26-2 7

LOT S 18-1 9

3801

4201

4315

4325

4401

4645

4650

4651
LOT S 1-2

4720

1580

4420
LOT  13

1350
1510

4431
LOT S 1,  2  &  18 -24

LOT  1

4611

4321

4307

LOT  32
1200

124012801332

4316

LOT  28
1460

4322

4380

4400

4318

LOT  124314
1502

XXXX

1480

1479 1475 1473

LOT  18

14781478 1474 1472

4317

4351

LOT  13
1490

4329

4327

3951 3941 3931
3921

3961
39713981

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

15

16

3805

LOT  2

LOT  3

LOT  4

4105 /4 107 /4 109 /4 111

4113 /4 115 /4 117 /4 119

4131 /4 133
4135 /4 137

4139 /4 141
4143 /4 145

1310

4115

1461
(U nits 1 &  2 )

4001
LOT  2

LOT  1

PAR CEL B

TRAC T A

OU
TL

O
T 

A

LOT S 15-1 8
4133

OUT LO T  B

LOT  30

OU
TL

O T  A

OU
T L

O T  A

LOT S 7-8

LOT S 9-10

LOT S 11-1 2

LOT S 13-1 4

LOT S 15-1 6

LOT S 17-1 8

LOT S 31-3 2

LOT S 25-2 6

LOT S 23-2 4

LOT S 21-2 2

LOT S 19-2 0

LOT S 29-3 0

LOT S 27-2 8

LOT S 5-6

LOT S 7-9

LOT S 13-1 4

LOT S 15-1 6

LOT S 17-1 8

LOT S 7-18

LOT S 10-1 2

LOT S 24-2 5

LOT S 21-2 3

LOT S 28-2 9

LOT S 26-2 7

LOT S 7-18

LOT  1

LOT S 5-6

LOT S 35-3 6

LOT S 33-3 4

LOT S 31-3 2

LOT S 25-2 6

LOT S 23-2 4

LOT S 21-2 2

LOT S 29-3 0

LOT S 27-2 8

LOT S 19-2 0

(5

(6
(7

(12

(11

(10

(8

(21

(24

(2

(5

OUT LO T   B

LOT  1

(5

(2
(1

(4

(3

(1

(2

(3

(1

3900

(2

(1 (1

(1

(2

(1

(3

(1

(3

(1

(2

(2

(1

(143

(4

(3

(11 2
(111 (11 0

(11 8(11 7

(11 8

(131

(1

(75

(36

(76

3715

3940

1111

39513951

LOT  2
4049

4000

1501

(35

(26

(25

LOT  1
1104

xxxx
LOT  6 LOT  4

1481

3811
IDAH O ST

1 2 3 4

85 6 7

3811

4301

1504 /1 506
LOT  2

LOT  14
1572

XXXX
LOT  7
XXXX

Evans
Community

Complex

Ix

42nd St
US

 H
wy

 85

43rd St

Ca
rso

n A
ve

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

40th St

44th St

Pr
iva

te 
Dr

Ind
ust

rial
 Pkw

y
38th St

Ida
ho

 St
Sta

te 
St

St
. V

rai
n S

t

39th St

41st St

Va
lm

on
t S

t

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

Sa
n J

ua
n C

ir

39th St

43rd St

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

IEvans
City Limits

LegendLegend

Project Site

4101 Carson
Ave

    Aerial Map        Aerial Map    
4101 Carson Avenue



Evans
Community

Complex

Ix

Commercial

Industrial - Business Park

River Habitat

Residential - Urban Neighborhood

Open Space

Residential - High Density

37th St

42nd St
US

 H
wy

 85

Ca
rso

n A
ve

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

Be
lm

on
t A

ve

40th St

38th St

Bran
tner R

d

44th St

Pr
iva

te 
Dr

39th St

St
. V

rai
n S

t

38th St Rd

41st St

41st St Rd

Va
lm

on
t S

t

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

40th St Ct

La
tha

m 
Av

e

Va
lm

on
t S

t

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

39th St
Bu

rlin
gto

n A
ve

IEvans
City Limits

LegendLegend

Project Site

    Future Land Use Map        Future Land Use Map    

4101 Carson Ave

4101 Carson Avenue



I-1

I-3

I-1

I-1

R-1

I-3
R-1

C-3

I-2

C-3

R-1

C-3
R-1

RC

R-1

R-3

I-2

R-1

R-3

R-1

C-3

I-2

R-2

R-1

R-2

R-3

C-3
R-3
R-2

R-1

Evans
Community

Complex

Ix

37th St

42nd St

US
 H

wy
 85

Ca
rso

n A
ve

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

40th St

38th St

44th St

Bran
tner R

d

Pr
iva

te 
Dr

39th St

St
. V

rai
n S

t

38th St Rd

41st St

41st St Rd

Va
lm

on
t S

t

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

40th St Ct

15
th 

Av
e

Ca
rso

n C
t

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

39th St

US
 Hw

y 8
5

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

IEvans
City Limits

LegendLegend

Project Site

    Zoning Map        Zoning Map    

4101 Carson Ave

4101 Carson Avenue



 

 



 







1 
 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
EVANS PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting 
August 5, 2013 – 6:00 p.m. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Bisel called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:  
Chairman Randall Bisel,  
Vice-Chairman Mark Brothe,  
Commissioner Robert S. Phillips III,  
Commissioner Jerry Numoto,  
Commissioner Conrad Grigson. 
 
Absent:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Phillips motioned, seconded by Vice Chairman Brothe to approve the, 
May 9, 2013, Minutes as presented.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
The Agenda was approved unanimously with no changes. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS  
 

A. Public Hearing – Resolution No xx-2013 - Use by Special Review for Outdoor 
Storage on property zoned I-2 – 4101 Carson Avenue in Evans Colorado – (Bell 
Oil Supply) 



2 
 

 

PRESENTED BY: N. Zach Ratkai, Building and Development Manager 

 

ACTION:   Recommendation to City Council 

 

CITY COUNCIL DATE: Tuesday, August 20, 2013  

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This is a request from the landowner (Tebo Development), 
for a Use by Special Review (USR) for outdoor storage to exceed the allowed 20% in 
the City of Evans Municipal Code.  The owner would like to be approved for 68% of the 
land as outdoor storage.   

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Location: 4101 Carson Avenue  

 

Applicants: 
Todd Bloom, Tebo Development  

 Existing Land Use: Vacant 

 
 

ProposedLandUse: 
Office/Warehouse with Storage Yard  

 

Surrounding Land 

Use: 

North Industrial (McJunkin Redman)  

South Commercial (Vacant) 
East Commercial (Vacant)  
West Industrial (Non-conforming storage yard) 

Existing Zoning: Medium Industrial (I-2) 
ProposedZoning: Same 

 

Surrounding 

Zoning: 

North  I-3  

South C-3 
East   C-3 
West   I-3 

Future Land Use 

Designation: 

 

Industrial Business Park 

 



3 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval with conditions in order to meet the 
criteria for the approval of the special use.  The Planning Commission held a public 
hearing on January 8, 2013 and recommended approval with conditions.  The condition 
was for a two year period with an automatic expiration at the end of the two years. Staff 
is recommending some screening and landscaping as conditions of approval as well.

ANALYSIS: 

1. Background: In the spring of 2013, Tebo Development (land owners) 
approached the city with the plan to construct an office/warehouse building to 
serve as the Evans base for Bell Oil Supply. As part of this plan, a site plan was 
submitted and is currently under administrative review by staff. The zoning for the 
site limits allowed outdoor storage to 20% of the total site area. The site plan, and 
intentions for the property, show a storage yard.  He is requesting a Use by 
Special Review approval to allow outdoor storage in excess of that allowed in an 
I-2 zone – 20% is the allowed amount of outdoor storage, the request is for 68%. 
 

2. Section 19.04, 19.32 19.44 and 19.48 of the Evans Municipal Code: 
Section 19.48 of the Municipal Code addresses accessory uses and in particular 
outdoor storage.  The proposed outdoor storage is over 10% of the property and 
therefore requires a USR approval in accordance with Section 19.44.   

 

19.48.055 Outdoor storage. 

Except by approval of a Use by Special Review, granted in accordance with Chapter 
19.44 of the Municipal Code, outdoor storage shall only be allowed as an accessory use 
in the I – Industrial – zoning districts and only in accordance with the following 
limitations: 

A. No more than 10 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-1 – Light 
Industrial – zoning district may be used for outdoor storage. 

B. No more than 20 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-2 – Medium 
Industrial – zoning district may be used for outdoor storage. 

C. No more than 30 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-3 – Heavy 
Industrial – zoning district may be used for outdoor storage.  

(Ord. 350-05: Ord. 272-04) 

Below are the criteria for approval of a USR per Section 19.44.020. 

Chapter 19.44 

Approval of Special Uses 



4 
 

19.44.020 Criteria for Use by Special Review.   

A. All special uses are listed within each zoning district. If a use is proposed that 
is not defined within the Evans Municipal Code and does not reasonably fall 
within the definition of any defined use in the Municipal Code, the property owner 
may apply for use by special review approval in accordance with this chapter. 

B. Criteria. The following criteria shall be used to evaluate use by special review 
requests: 

1. The proposed use is found to be unlikely to harm the health, safety, or 
welfare of the City or its residents. 
 

The use could certainly harm the welfare of the City and our residents by 
eliminating the compatibility with the commercially zoned properties to the south.  
With heavy industrial use (68% outdoor storage) commercial uses to the south 
would be limited, which affects the long term financial sustainability of the City. 

 

2. The proposed use would benefit the City in terms of employment, tax 
revenue, or other similar effects, as compared to the absence of the 
proposed use. 
 
This type of storage allotment is associated typically with heavy industrial use 
and is best located in areas of I-3 zoning that are well removed from the public 
right of way and away from commercial uses.  Even in the I-3 zone the code 
states 30% is the maximum for outdoor storage.  In urban areas such as the City 
of Evans, uses such as outdoor storage should be limited (as the code intended) 
in order to fulfill the goals of the 2010 Comprehensive Plan and long range 
planning and sustainability issues. 
 

3. The proposed use shall be consistent with the Evans Comprehensive Plan 
and shall be compatible with the surrounding area. 

 

The use is NOT consistent with the Evans Comprehensive Plan nor is it 
compatible with the surrounding area.  Much of the surrounding area is 
developed as industrial, with similar office/warehouse/storage use. The proposal 
from the applicant is a request to meet a similar standard to existing conditions in 
the area; however many of these sites are out of compliance.  The City is in the 
process of issuing notices of violation to the remaining land owners in violation of 
the outdoor storage code. 

 



5 
 

4. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed 
use shall be compatible with the existing and proposed future land uses 
within the general area in which the proposed use is to be located and will 
not create significant noise, traffic, or other conditions or situations that 
may be objectionable or detrimental to other permitted uses in the vicinity. 
Reasonable conditions may be placed on uses by special review to protect 
the public health, safety, and welfare by mitigating impacts. 
 
The current and future land uses in that site are not compatible with outdoor 
storage of this intensity on this size of property.  It will create a situation/condition 
that will negatively affect other property owners in the area, especially the 
commercial properties to the south.  Additional screening throughout the 
perimeter and the requirement for a landscape bufferyard and a different kind of 
fencing will be required to mitigate impacts.   

 

5. The site shall be physically suitable for the type and intensity of the 
proposed land use. 
 

The site is physically suitable for outdoor storage, except for the zoning, the 
compatibility with surrounding uses to the south (commercially zoned) and 
proximity to the public right of way. 

 

6. The proposed land use shall not adversely affect traffic flow and parking in 
the neighborhood. 

 

The outdoor storage use proposed would not adversely affect traffic flow and 
parking in the area.  

 

7. The location of other approved uses by special review in the neighborhood 
shall be determined, in order to avoid an over-concentration of such uses. 
 
The applicant has pointed out that in the area; there are storage yards in which 
outdoor covers a substantial area of the property. However, the sites referenced 
are out of compliance with the Municipal Code. Staff is currently issuing letters of 
violation in the area to other land owners that may not be aware of the code 
related to outdoor storage.   
In consideration of surrounding uses, currently the approval on 1470 42nd Street 
is for up to 50%, and that was allowed as it could be screened from 42nd Street 
and was a much smaller piece of land, and hence a much smaller impact on the 



6 
 

neighborhood.  Most recently, 1461 43rd Street to the south of this property was 
approved to have 60% outdoor storage, with conditions placed on the property 
for the addition of substantial screening as well as a temporary, revocable time 
period during which excess storage would be allowed. Those approvals, which 
will stay for that legal description on that site, will remain in place and anything 
other would be an over concentration of the outdoor storage use in the area. 

 

Issues: 

The main concern with the application is the adjacency and compatibility with 
commercial and other industrial zoning.  42nd Street is a major thoroughfare for the City 
of Evans and therefore compatibility with existing industrial uses and future commercial 
uses is critical to the future development and sustainability of the City. With 68% of the 
lot being used for outdoor storage that issue becomes even more important to the long 
term compatibility issues in the neighborhood.   

The precedent set by allowing a Use by Special Review for additional outdoor storage in 
this I-2 zone at this location could lead to other land owners requesting the same USR 
for the same reasons (business oriented).  That would essentially mean the land in this 
area would exceed even the highest use allowed in the I-3 zone (currently 30%). 

The land sits higher than the adjacent commercial lots along 42nd Street and no amount 
of screening allowed under the code would allow compatibility to exist with other uses in 
the area.  There is no fence or landscaping allowed by the code that could be installed 
on site to improve the compatibility for 42nd Street, the commercial properties to the 
north, and the Highway 85 corridor to the east. 

Additionally, this land is zoned I-2 for a reason. The premise behind appropriate zoning 
includes the issues of land use.  Zoning permits certain uses on land and usually  move 
from the least intense uses to the most intense uses, protecting land and the public from 
more intense uses by placing that zoning away from areas of commercial, residential, or 
lower uses land zoning.  The land uses should move from least significant impact to 
higher impact, especially along major arterials and areas of importance to the City. 

Other land in the area is zoned either I-1 or C-3 (lowest industrial zoning in our code, 
highest commercial zoning in our code, which would be compatible uses).  This land is 
visually adjacent to Highway 85, and also adjacent to other I-1 and C-3 sites that 
comply with the code. 

Notice of this public hearing was provided in accordance with Chapter 19.64 and 
18.28.125 of the Municipal Code. 



7 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS 

After reviewing the Alpha and Omega USR for outdoor storage that exceeds the 10% 
and a security residence on property located at 1461 43rd Street the following findings 
of fact and conclusions have been determined: 
The review criteria in Sections 19.44 of the Evans Municipal Code CANbe appropriately 
and sufficiently met WITH CONDITIONS.  With conditions, approval of this special use 
would be consistent with the 2010 Comprehensive Plan nor with the surrounding land 
uses. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

I recommend that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval 
with conditions of the requested USR with the findings and conclusions listed above as 
well as the following conditions: 

1. The approval for excess storage is for a period of five (5) years and will expire 
on August 20, 2018, this approval period is renewable at time of expiration, and;  

2. The approval is contingent upon a landscape buffer of fifteen (15) feet 
surrounding both the northern and southern sides of the subject property, and a 
twenty (20) foot landscape buffer on the rear of the property (review to be 
secured through the site plan process).  

3. The approval is contingent upon in installation of a fully opaque, six (6) foot tall 
cedar privacy fence to screen the storage yard as shown on the preliminary site 
plan.  

 

Chairman Bisel opened the Public Hearing. Zach Ratkai, Building & Development 
Manager, presented the facts and findings and asked if there were questions of staff 
from the Commission. There were none.  

Todd Bloom, Director of Development with Tebo Development on behalf of the 
applicant, approached the podium.  Bell Supply is in the industrial plumbing industry. 
Mr. Bloom presented a landscape plan that would follow what the City is asking.  They 
have signed a 15 year lease with their tenant. He wants condition #1 removed. Brothe 
is concerned about the cedar fence. Todd is thinking about other materials to use. 
Brothe said he would like to see a metal fence like others down in that area. Brothe 
wanted to know who was putting in the street next to the property. Mr. Bloom stated the 
developer would be putting in the street. Grigson asked about number of employees 
with Mr. Bloom responding 6 to 10 employees for the site. Phillips wanted to know 
where the semis would be accessing the property. Brothe asked about the building 
size, with Mr. Bloom responding 12500 sf. Phillips asked about the possibility of 
allowing the outdoor storage use for an unlimited time. Ratkai stated the 5 year 
limitation on the use was standard with other outdoor storage USR’s in this area of the 



8 
 

city and that, since USR conditions run with the land, in 5 years the conditions of the 
USR can be revisited in order to see if the outdoor storage in excess of 20% is still 
feasible for the site. Bloom no one responded to the 500’ mailing.  

There were no further questions from the Planning Commission, Chairman Bisel then  
closed the public hearing.  

Brothe said the City needs to leave the 5 year condition in place and he doesn’t think 
they are using the right fencing material for the type of project.  Bisel felt a hail storm 
would destroy the metal fence.  Phillips said he thinks the 5 year condition should stay 
as well.  Mark Brothe moved for the forward a recommendation of approval with 
conditions to the City Council. The motion received a 2nd from Robert Phillips. The 
motion passed unanimously.  

The City Council hearing will be Tues, Aug 20 at 7:30pm. 

RECOMMENDED PLANNING COMMISSION MOTION: 

“Mr. Chairman, on the issue of the Bell Oil Supply Use by Special Review for outdoor 
storage, I move that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval 
with conditions to the Evans City Council because it meets the criteria outlined in 
Sections 19.04, 19.32, 19.44 and Section 19.48 of the Municipal Code.” 

 

“Mr. Chairman, on the issue of the Bell Oil Supply Use by Special Review for outdoor 
storage and a security residence, I move to recommend denial because it does not 
meet the criteria outlined in Sections 19.04, 19.32, 19.44 and Section 19.48 of the 
Municipal Code.” 

 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
 
There was not any audience participation. 

 
GENERAL DISCUSSION: 
 
Ratkai gave general staff updates. He told of ST moving to ED and Zach over CD.  
Randy’s last meeting. Conrad has BBQ planned Aug 22.  
 
ADJOURMENT: 
 
Chairperson Bisel adjourned the meeting at 6:38 p.m. 
 



  

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 30-2013 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A USE BY SPECIAL REVIEW FOR OUTDOOR STORAGE 
IN EXCESS OF 20% ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4101 CARSON AVENUE IN 
EVANS COLORADO – BELL OIL SUPPLY  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Evans has received a request from Bell Supply (Borchert Pointe, LLC) owner, for 

a Use by Special Review (USR) for outdoor storage; and 
 
WHEREAS, this site location is zoned I-2, Medium Industrial; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 19.48.055. A of the City of Evans Municipal Code states:  “Except by approval of a 

Use by Special Review, granted in accordance with Chapter 19.44 of the Municipal Code, outdoor storage shall 
only be allowed as an accessory use in the I – Industrial – zoning districts and only in accordance with the 
following limitations: A. No more than 20 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-2 – Medium Industrial – 
zoning district may be used for outdoor storage.”, and  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed use is intended to provide outdoor storage for an existing business for Bell 

Supply; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing and recommended approval with 

conditions of such request at its meeting on August 5, 2013; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing and has carefully reviewed the request and finds 
that such use meets the special permit criteria, and that it complies with the purpose of the zoning codes, and 
otherwise promotes the health, safety, and welfare of the City. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANS, 

COLORADO, that a special permit is hereby granted to allow outdoor storage that exceeds 20% of the property   
on the site with the following conditions: 

 
1. The approval for excess storage is for a period of five (5) years and will expire on August 20, 

2018, this approval period is renewable at time of expiration. Said renewal is not automatic and 
must be initiated by the property owner at the time of expiration or if the nature of the land use 
warrants review of the USR conditions approved herein, and;  

2. The approval is contingent upon a landscape buffer of fifteen (15) feet surrounding both the 
northern and southern sides of the subject property, and a twenty (20) foot landscape buffer on 
the rear of the property (review to be secured through the site plan process).  

3. The approval is contingent upon in installation of a fully opaque, six (6) foot tall cedar privacy 
fence to screen the storage yard as shown on the preliminary site plan.  
 
The site plan is shown on the attached Exhibit A: 
 
PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Evans on this 20th day of     August___ 2013. 
 
 

ATTEST:       CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
        By:                                                       
 City Clerk        Mayor 



 2 Reso. xx-2013 

 
Exhibit A 

 

 



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE:  September 3, 2013    
 
AGENDA ITEM: 9.A  

 
SUBJECT:  Request for full time position increase  
 
PRESENTED BY: Jessica Gonifas, CPA, Deputy City Manager 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
 
Background on Information Technology (“IT”) staffing  
Historically, IT in the City has not had any dedicated staff with the exception of a contracted systems 
administrator who works for the City about one day per week.  The previous City Clerk coordinated the 
IT efforts and provided some customer support.  But, for the most part, IT has essentially been 
decentralized with the departments handling much of their own IT needs for both purchasing and 
support.  
 
In 2012, the City developed a five year strategic plan for IT with the goal of providing a framework and 
set of strategies for the effective utilization and management of information technology throughout the 
City. One of the areas of focus in the study was staffing and a key recommendation was to create a 
centralized IT division lead by an IT Manager. This department is now located within Administrative 
Services and reports to the Deputy City Manager.  
 
Current staffing situation 
Earlier this year, the management team recommended to the City Council that the IT Manager position 
be funded in 2013 as a temporary full time position authorized through the end of the current year. At 
that time, the team felt it was a conservative approach avoiding adding long term fixed costs. After 
approval by the City Council, staff first searched for a firm to provide this support. We were not able to 
find a third party that was able to commit this level of resources for a limited period of time. The next 
attempt to hire for the position was made through the City recruitment process as a direct hire by the 
City for the temporary position. The City did offer the position to the top candidate who rejected the 
offer due to not wanting to take a temporary assignment not knowing if it would be extended long term. 
Finally, an IT Manager was identified through an IT staffing agency. Although the manager worked for 
a couple of weeks, the fit and technical skill set was not what the City needed. The position is currently 
vacant. After much discussion, the management team felt the difficulty in hiring the right IT manager 
for the City was due to the temporary nature of the position and that it was unlikely a person at this level 
in an organization was going to leave their current long term position for a temporary position.  
 
 
 
 



Future staffing request 
As was presented in the budget work session on August 27th, staff is recommending to fund the IT 
manager position long term, starting in the 2014 budget.  
 
Current request 
Due to our difficulty in recruiting for the position as temporary and the fact that the position was going 
to be recommended as an addition in 2014, we are respectfully requesting you consider approving an 
increase in the full time equivalents for the long term recruitment of the IT Manager now, rather than 
waiting until 2014.   
 
Section II.C.a. of the Financial Policies outlines that the City Council will approve: “The number of full 
time positions and dollar amount for total regular staff”. Hence the reason we are bringing this change 
forward for your consideration.  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
If the increase in full time positions is approved, an increase in funding for 2013 is not necessary as 
the position was previously funded through a budget revision.  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the request.  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
“I move to approve the increase in full time positions in the City’s Information Technology Division by 
one.” 
 
“I move to deny the request to increase the full time positions within the City’s Information Technology 
Division.” 
 
  



SEPTEMBER 2013 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 1 2 3 4 5 

September Event Location Time 

3 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

7 EvansFest Riverside Park 8:00 AM - 2:00 PM 

17 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

5 NFRMPO September Meeting Johnstown 6:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

10 City Council Work Session:    
CIP & AMP Budgets   

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

7 Council Photos Council Chambers 4:30 PM - 6:00 PM 

October Event Location Time 

1 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

15 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

17 Government Agencies  
Meeting 

Aims Community  
College 

Begins at 7:00 AM 

3 NFRMPO October Meeting Loveland Council Cham-
bers 400 E. Third Street 

6:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

3 CML District 2 Event Estes Park 4:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

26 Drug Take– Back &  
Shred Event 

Evans Sams Club 
3247 23rd Avenue 

10:00 AM - 2:00 PM 

OCTOBER 2013 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31   

NOVEMBER 2013 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

November Event Location Time 

5 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

11 Veterans Day City Offices Closed  

19 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

28 Thanksgiving City Offices Closed  

7 NFRMPO November Meeting Greeley Family Fun Plex  
1501 65th Ave. 

6:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

v 

http://www.nfrmpo.org/Calendar/Event.aspx�
http://evansfest.org/�
http://www.nfrmpo.org/Calendar/Event.aspx�
http://www.cml.org/Public/Core/Events/eventdetails.aspx?iKey=DIST_2_13�
http://www.cityofevans.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/shred.drug_sign.fall2013.pdf�
http://www.cityofevans.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/shred.drug_sign.fall2013.pdf�
http://www.cityofevans.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/shred.drug_sign.fall2013.pdf�
http://www.cityofevans.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/shred.drug_sign.fall2013.pdf�
http://www.nfrmpo.org/Calendar/Event.aspx�

	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE
	ROLL CALL
	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	RECOGNITIONS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	7 .A  Staff Report - Approval of Minutes

	OLD BUSINESS 
	8 .A  Staff Report USRBell Oil 
	CityUSR Application
	Chapter 19.44 - Approval of Special Uses.R508
	4101 Carson Aerial Map
	4101 Carson FLU Map
	4101 Carson Zoning Map
	Site and Landscape Plan
	Survey, including topo
	Planning Commission 8.5.13 Minutes
	Resolution No. 30-2013 Bell Oil USR


	NEW BUSINESS
	9.A Staff Report-Request For Full-Time Postition Increase 

	REPORTS
	City Manager
	City Attorney

	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	ADJOURNMENT
	CITY COUNCIL CALENDAR



